

smartsheet

How to Guide for General Practices

Table of Contents

Table of Contents 2
What is Smartsheet?
Why Smartsheet?
How to use Smartsheet
Accessing Smartsheet – Quality website login3
Smartsheet home page4
Sheet 1 – The self-assessment sheet5
Sheet 2 – Assessment Dashboard7
Sharing your sheet with others within your practice9
Completing your self-assessment
Attaching evidence
Advanced functions
Tracking changes
Contacting your assessor
Communicating with your assessor24
Assessor report
Closing your assessment
Hints and Tips
Appendix 1 – Cornerstone Modules

What is Smartsheet?

Smartsheet is a cloud-based work management tool, allowing users to share information and work collaboratively within a central hub. It combines some of the functionality of Microsoft Project, Excel, Access and SharePoint.

Why Smartsheet?

The College chose Smartsheet as an assessment tool due to its visual and functional simplicity. It was first trialled during the Foundation and Cornerstone pilot assessments in 2019 to positive feedback.

Smartsheet has proven to be intuitive and user-friendly for both practices and assessors, as well as acting as a useful tool for the College for tracking, analysing and moderating information within an assessment. The College will continue to use this software for Foundation Standard and a selection of Cornerstone module assessments beginning 1 April 2020.

How to use Smartsheet

As a general practice, you will use Smartsheet to monitor the progress of your self-assessment, complete your assessment and liaise with your assessor.

An assessment is split into two components. The first is known as the 'assessment sheet' and is your selfassessment. The second component, called the 'assessment dashboard', is a viewable summary of the progress of your assessment.

Accessing Smartsheet – Quality website login

The College will notify you when your assessment sheet and dashboard are ready via email. Please keep your contact details up to date with the College to ensure that future assessments and College communications are sent to the correct email address.

To access the assessment visit <u>www.rnzcgp.org.nz/quality</u> and log into your quality account. Once logged in, click on the 'Programmes' button. For each quality programme you are enrolled in there will be a link to that specific assessment on Smartsheet.

Note: The first time you click on any link you will be asked to create a Smartsheet login and password. Once you have created your log in, you can access the self-assessment and dashboard.

Smartsheet home page

Logging on displays your Smartsheet home page allowing you to view any sheets that have been shared with you by the College. Both the <u>assessment sheet</u> and <u>assessment dashboard</u> will appear listed within the Sheets section as in the screenshot below.

G	https://app.smartsheet.com	/folders/personal	
<i> (</i> 1) S	heets - Smartsheet.com 🗙 📑		
≡	Home <	Search Q Dygrade	sn
	💷 Dashboards/Portals		
•	Sheets (2)	Sheets	
0	😃 Workspaces	Actions •	
	▼ More	Name Sharing Status	
*	Reports	📄 🛨 📮 F12345-X-ABC Practice Shared	
	Q All	□ ☆ III F12345-X-ABC Practice Shared	
+	🖸 Owned By Me		
	🖸 Shared To Me		
	Deleted Items		

Smartsheet Assessment evidence overview

After logging into Smartsheet, your assessment sheets can be accessed via the home icon, followed by 'Sheets' section found on the menu to the left of the screen. This section displays your assessment sheet(s) and assessment dashboard(s).

≡	Home	Search Q G Upgrade	
▲Ø	Dashboards/Portals Dashboards/Portals Dashboards/Portals Workspaces	Sheets	
	▼ More	Name	Sharing Status
*	Reports	□ 🔶 📮 F12345-X-ABC Practice	Shared
+	Q All	□ ☆ III F12345-X-ABC Practice	Shared
	🔍 Owned By Me		
	🔍 Shared To Me		
	👕 Deleted Items		

Sheet 1 – The self-assessment sheet

¢	https://app.smartsheet.com/f	olders/personal		
<i> (</i> 3) S	heets - Smartsheet.com 🛛 🖄 📑			
≡	Home <	Search	Q Upgrade	sn
	💷 Dashboards/Portals	_		
•	Sheets (2)	Sheets		
0	😃 Workspaces	Actions •	Assessment Sheet	
	▼ More	Name	Sharing Status	
*	Reports	📄 🚖 📮 F12345-X-ABC Practice	Shared	
+	Q All	🔲 🚖 🔳 F12345-X-ABC Practice	Shared	
Ť	🔍 Owned By Me			
	🖸 Shared To Me			
	Deleted Items			

To begin working on your self-assessment, select your self-assessment sheet as indicated above. An example of a Foundation Standard self-assessment sheet is displayed below. Cornerstone Modules, whilst still completed in Smartsheet, differ slightly from the Foundation examples as shown below. For specific guidance on Cornerstone Modules please see <u>Appendix 1 – Cornerstone Modules</u>

Search						
tomation Forms	←8	9 5 Å - <u>1</u> - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 1	10 HT 11 T	F12345-X-ABC Practic	ie -	
■ □ □ (Section Progress	Indicator and Criteria	Erdence	Self Assessment [choose from dropdown list.]		Assessor Assessment [choose from dropdown list.]	Assessor's comment [free text]
2	 Section 1: Türoro Patients Indicator 1. The Code of Health and Disability Services Consumers' Rights 1996. 1. The practice understands, promotes and implements the Code of Health and Disability 	Clish have for indicator 1 Guitance Resources - A poster of the Code of Health and Duability Services Consumer: Rights 1998 translated into appropriate Impagages, including is new Nider, fuer freecting in protocies	Not Met		Not yet assessed	start typing
⊡ ≺ 5	Sarakes Consumers' Rights 1996.	entitle partief opulation. Table and to broken informing patients of their right to have one more support particle greatert during a construitation. • Local health aloncasity resources. • Information about accessing interpresents and resources. • Dean distatuse about approximation and the resolution. • Example of an open disclosure event and to resolution. • Documente adverse events are recorded in adverse events register and indical indices.		start tysing or right clok and solid. Insert image'		
	1.2 The practice ensures a patient's right to make an informed choice and give informed consent. [Right 7]	- Consider and Transien accose - Writer consent from and/or a written record of verbal agreement, including risks - Explanation of how the practice helps patients with Iteracy difficulties to make informed decisions. - Paringhese, posses or information available describing the practices are records and fees.	Not Met	start typing or right click and select 'insert image'	Not yet assessed	start typing
	1.3 The practice ensures a patient's right to complain. [Right 10]	- Complaints policy and procedure - A designated Complaints Officer role and position description - A complaints register: - A description of the process through which complaints procedure actiones are shared within the practice.	Not Met	atert typing or right click and select linsert image!	Not yet assessed	start typing
a 6 ∎	Indicator 2. Patient Information 2.1 The practice understands and implements the Privacy Act 1993 and Health Information Privacy Code 1994.	Click here for indicator 2 Guidance Resources	Not Met	start typing or right click and select 'insert image'	Not yet assessed	start typing
	2.2 The practice follows the Privacy Commissioner's guidance on privacy.	A privacy policy and procedure.	Not Met	start typing or right click and select 'insert image'	Not yet assessed	start typing
	2.3 The practice securely manages information within an electronic management system.	A documented health information security policy and/or procedure. A documented records transfer policy, procedure and tracking system	Not Met	stert typing or right click and select 'insert image'	Not yet assessed	start typing

- 1. Indicator and indicator evidence This section provides information on the name of each section, indicator and criteria. The second column provides evidence for the benefit of the practice and assessor.
- 2. **Status** The traffic light symbol displays the status of the assessment based on the indicators that you have selected. A separate status symbol is used for each of the six Foundation Standard sections:
 - a. Green indicates that you have selected 'Met' for <u>all</u> indicators within that section
 - b. Yellow indicates that you have selected 'Partially Met', or 'Not Applicable' for <u>at least one</u> of the indicators within that section.
 - c. Red indicates that you have selected 'Not Met' for <u>at least one</u> of the indicators within that section.
- 3. **Practice self-assessment columns (Yellow cells)** This section consists of two columns that are required to complete as a practice:
 - a. Self-assessment dropdown The first column requires you to select whether you believe that the current indicator status is met, not met, partially met or not applicable. This will show 100% completion on the assessment dashboard only once you have selected all 53 indicators on all sections as 'Met'. By default, each indicator is set as 'Not Met' until manually changed. Should you also want a visualisation of the current count of each of these indicator states, this can be viewed and tracked at any time within the <u>assessment dashboard</u>. Please note that typically an assessor will expect all indicators to be marked as 'Met' before approaching them to assess your practice.
 - b. Self-assessment free text The second column displays your comments to the corresponding indicators. These cells also support uploading a photo instead of writing a comment for indicators in cases where this would be more appropriate than a comment, such as indicators relating to a poster or signs. Within the cell, press ALT+Enter to begin a new line without going to the next cell.
- 4. Assessor self-assessment (orange cells) This section consists of two columns that form the assessors review of the practice self-assessment and onsite visit.
 - a. Assessor assessment dropdown The first column requires the assessor to indicate whether the current indicator status has been 'Met', 'Not Met', 'Partially Met', 'Not Yet Assessed', or 'Not Applicable'. Should you also want a visualisation of the current count of each of these indicator states, this can be viewed and tracked at any time within the <u>assessment dashboard</u>.
 - **b.** Assessor comments free text The second column allows for the assessors to make comments against each indicator. Within the cell, press ALT+Enter to begin a new line without going to the next cell.
- 5. **Comment section** Clicking on the speech bubble icon allows the practice and the assessor to leave messages to each other throughout the assessment.
- 6. Expand/Collapse function Each section and each indicator can be expanded and collapsed.
- 7. **Resource links** Each indicator includes a link to the respective guidance page on the College's Quality website. Other useful links can also be found on the assessment dashboard.
- 8. **Toolbar** Selecting 'File' within the toolbar allows for saving and printing of the sheet in its entirety for your records and provides you with the option to export the entire sheet into excel, PDF or Google Sheets.

Important note – Whilst the College has provided practices with control over their assessment sheet and dashboard, it is strongly recommended to not edit your assessment sheet in any way other than completing the designated self-assessment sections. Never select 'delete' on a row or column, and do not change any formula within the sheet. If you believe you have deleted/modified anything that is affecting sheet functionality, please contact the College quality@rnzcgp.org.nz.

Sheet 2 – Assessment Dashboard

(3) 5	lighttps://app.smartsheet.com	/folders/personal	
= •	Home < I Dashboards/Portals Sheets (2) Workspaces	Search Q OUpgrade	sn
* +	 ▼ More ■ Reports ④ All ④ Owned By Me ④ Shared To Me ■ Deleted Items 	Name Sharing Status F12345-X-ABC Practice Shared Dashboard	

The assessment dashboard is a visual representation of the current status of an assessment. This is useful for keeping track of which sections have outstanding criteria and as a central source of useful resource links.

You will be provided access to your assessment dashboard alongside your assessment sheet. If you are unable to see your assessment dashboard please contact the College at quality@rnzcgp.org.nz.

There are two halves to your assessment dashboard: The top section relates to the indicator state of those selected by yourself as the practice, and the bottom section displays indicator state of those as selected by the assessor. Both sections also provide clickable links on the right of the screen to various resources.



- 1. Indicator Chart (Practices) This chart shows the current indicator state as chosen by your practice, by percentage. This chart will show 100% only if all indicators show 'Met'. Please note that in the case that the assessment is completed with any indicators showing as 'Not Applicable' then this chart will not show 100% regardless of whether the assessment is complete.
- 2. Indicators status by section (Practices) These boxes indicate the specific count of indicators selected within each of the six sections within the Foundation Standard, as selected by <u>your practice.</u>
- 3. **Clickable shortcuts** Displays a list of various practice applicable resources within the College website.
- 4. **Indicator Chart (Assessors)** Chart showing the current indicator state as chosen by the assessor, by percentage. This chart will show 100% only if all indicators show 'Met'. Please note that in the case that the assessment is completed with any indicators showing as 'Not Applicable' this chart will not show 100% regardless of whether the assessment is complete.
- 5. **Indicators status by section (Assessors)** These boxes indicate the specific count of indicators selected for each of the six sections within the Foundation Standard, as selected by <u>the assessor</u>.
- 6. Clickable shortcuts Displays a list of various assessor applicable resources within the College website.

Important note – Do not edit your dashboard in any way. Your dashboard has been set up as a visual tool only to assist you with your assessment. By selecting 'edit' and changing anything within your dashboard, you may inadvertently delete or modify links or formulas that link to your assessment. If you believe you

have deleted/modified anything that is affecting sheet functionality, please contact the College quality@rnzcgp.org.nz.

Sharing your sheet with others within your practice

Once you have access to Smartsheet you will have control over who you wish to share your assessment with. Sharing will require two steps:

1. Sharing your dashboard

Within your <u>dashboard</u>, select 'Share' at the top right of the screen.

5			🌀 🕸 🖵 🖶 🗱 🖊 Share
	Foundation Asses	ssment	
se)			Resources
Not Met	Section 1: Tūroro Patients Met Indicators: 0 Partially Met Indicators: 0 Not Met Indicators: 13 Not Applicable Indicators: 0	Section 2: MANAAKI HAUMANU I Clinical Care Met Indicators: 0 Partially Met Indicators: 0 Not Met Indicators: 14 Not Applicable Indicators: 0	The Royal New Zealand College of General Practitioners Te Whare Tohu Rata o Aotearoa
	Section 3: WHAKAHAU RONGOĂ Medicines Management Met Indicators: 0 Partially Met Indicators: 0 Not Met Indicators: 7	Section 4: TAPUTAPU Medical Equip. and Resources Met Indicators: 0 Partially Met Indicators: 0 Not Met Indicators: 8	Foundation information Assessment process
	Not Applicable Indicators: 0	Not Applicable Indicators: 0	College Quality page
	Section 5: TIKANGA POKENGA Infection control Met Indicators: 0 Partially Met Indicators: 0 Not Met Indicators: 8	Section 6: WHARE HAUMANU The Practice Met Indicators: 0 Partially Met Indicators: 0 Not Met Indicators: 7	College endorsed assessors directory
	Not Applicable Indicators: 0	Not Applicable Indicators: 0	Contact the College Quality team
ıse)			
(Assessor)	Section 1: Tūroro Patients Met Indicators: 0 Partially Met Indicators: 0	Section 2: MANAAKI HAUMANU Clinical Care Met Indicators: 0 Partially Met Indicators: 0	Resources

When the 'Dashboard Sharing' box appears, enter the email address of the intended person of which you wish to share your sheet.

Select 'Admin' under permissions should you wish to provide them with the same rights as yourself.

Ensure that 'notify people' is checked to ensure that the intended user receives an email inviting them to access your assessment.

Finally, select 'share dashboard'.

Dashboard Sharing				
Invite Collaborators			Permissions	
Enter names or email addresses		1	Admin	
Invite Details				
Subject Line				
Number of Astronomic Statistics and the second second				
Personal message (optional)				
✓ Notify people Cc myself				
Collaborators (6)		This dashboard is in	a workspace:	
			Share Dashbo	

1. Sharing your assessment sheet

If you also want another user to have editing access to your self-assessment you must also share your assessment sheet with them. Within your assessment sheet select 'Share' at the top right of the screen.



When the 'Sheet Sharing' box appears, enter the email address of the intended person of which you wish to share your sheet.

Select 'Editor-can share' under permissions should you wish to provide them with the same rights as yourself.

Ensure that 'notify people' is checked to ensure that the intended user receives an email inviting them to access your assessment.

Finally, select 'share Sheet.

Invite Collaborators	Permissions (
Enter names or email addresses	Leditor - can sha	ire
Invite Details		
Subject Line		
Topic committee distriction activities	1	
Personal message (optional)		
✓ Notify people Cc myself		
Collaborators (6)	This sheet is in a workspace	

Completing your self-assessment

The practice self-assessment section (yellow) includes two columns:

- 1. **'Self-Assessment [choose from dropdown list]'** allows you to choose the current state of each indicator as per your practice's self-assessment.
- 2. **'Self Assessment [free text]'** is the assessment text. This is where you should explain why you believe your practice has 'Met' respective indicator.

	*	F12345-X-ABC Practice		22
U S 💩 · A · E · 🚍 &	ኖ 🖽 🖊 🖉	🖬 🕾 🖞 Σ · \$ · % , .οοο. Β ·		
	Self Assessment [choose from dropdown list]	Self Assessment [free text]	Assessor Assessment [choose from dropdown list]	Assessor's comment [free text]
ndicator 1 Guidance Resources				
of Health and Disability Services 95 Granalated into appropriate 9 res Maori, that reflect the practice's aton. res informing patients of their right to port persons present during a 2y resources. cessing interpreters and resources. cy and/or procedure. disclosure event and its resolution. a events are recorded in adverse clinical notes.	Met	Example of practice text concerning how the indicator has been met would be written here. Alternatively the practice is able to upload a photo which would display as per the cell below	Met	start typing
s and/or a written record of verbal risks. he practice helps patients with literacy smed decisions. If information available describing the d fees.	Met		Met	start typing
d procedure.	Met		Met	start typing

This free text self-assessment column is also capable of showing photographic evidence in the cell if applicable.

Attaching a photo can be achieved by right clicking a cell and selecting 'Insert image', as below. Please note that this is used when a single photo will satisfy meeting the criteria. If multiple photos are needed, these will have to be attached via the paperclip icon.



Should the need arise for your practice or assessor to mark an indicator as 'Not Applicable' then this has also been made available as a selection. Please note that it is normal practice that under the Foundation Standard and Cornerstone modules <u>all</u> indicators are required to be met. Do not submit your assessment with any indicators marked as 'Not Applicable' unless this is on direction from your assessor.

Attaching evidence

In order to be assessed, you must also attach evidence alongside your self-assessment demonstrating you have met each indicator within the Foundation Standard or Cornerstone module.

To attach a file, select the paper clip icon that can be found to the left of each indicator row.

In the screenshot below, clicking the paperclip will add evidence to Indicator 1.1 (row 3).

	0	Section Progress	Indicator and Criteria	Evidence
		80	8	8
1	8	•	Section1: Tūroro Patients	
2	e		 Indicator 1. The Code of Health and Disability Services Consumers' Rights 1996. 	Click here for Indicator 1 Guidance Resources
3 💌	0 🗆 🔿 🖰		1.1 The practice understands, promotes and implements the Code of Health and Disability Services Consumers' Rights 1996.	 A poster of the Code of Health and Disability Services Consumers' Rights 1996 translated into appropriate languages, including te reo Māori, that reflect the practice's enrolled patient population. Poster and/or brochures informing patients of their right to have one or more support persons present during a consultation. Local health advocacy resources. Information about accessing interpreters and resources. Open disclosure policy and/or procedure. Example of an open disclosure event and its resolution. Documented adverse events are recorded in adverse events register and in clinical notes. Completed staff training records.
4			1.2 The practice ensures a patient's right to make an informed choice and give informed consent. [Right 7]	 Written consent forms and/or a written record of verbal agreements, including risks. Explanation of how the practice helps patients with literacy difficulties to make informed decisions. Pamphlets, posters or information available describing the practice's services and fees.
5			1.3 The practice ensures a patient's right to complain. [Right 10]	 Complaints policy and procedure. A designated Complaints Officer role and position description. A complaints register. A description of the process through which complaints procedure outcomes are shared within the practice.

Once a file is attached to an indicator, hovering your mouse over this indicator will display the number of files currently attached.

	0	-	i i	Section Progress	Indicator and Criteria	Evidence
	•			80	8	8
1			۵	•	Section1: Tūroro Patients	
2			a		 Indicator 1. The Code of Health and Disability Services Consumers' Rights 1996. 	Click here for Indicator 1 Guidance Resources
					1.1 The practice understands, promotes and implements the Code of Health and Disability Services Consumers' Rights 1996.	 A poster of the Code of Health and Disability Services Consumers' Rights 1996 translated into appropriate languages, including te reo Māori, that reflect the practice enrolled patient population. Poster and/or brochures informing patients of their right have one or more support persons present during a
3 💌	Û			ments on this	row: 1	consultation. • Local health advocacy resources. • Information about accessing interpreters and resources.
		Ð	amp	le attachment	of training process.docx	 Open disclosure policy and/or procedure. Example of an open disclosure event and its resolution. Documented adverse events are recorded in adverse events register and in clinical notes.
					1.2 The practice ensures a patient's right to make an informed choice and give informed consent. [Right 7]	Completed staff training records. Written consent forms and/or a written record of verbal agreements, including risks. Explanation of how the practice helps patients with litera difficulties to make informed decisions. Pamphlets, posters or information available describing the practice's services and fees.
4					1.3 The practice ensures a	Complaints policy and procedure.

To view a list of all current attachments within your assessment, navigate to the right of the screen and select the paperclip icon on the right toolbar.



This summary view also provides the locations of each attachment within the sheet. Selecting an attachment in this section will take you directly to the applicable row.

+ E102	45-X-ABC Pract	ico				Share
_					*	Share
2 🖬 🗄	Ξ Ξ Ξ Ξ Ξ Ξ	• % • .0. 00, 🔢 •				^
	Assessor Assessment [choose from	Assessor's comment [free text]		Attachme	nts ? ×	Q
	dropdown list]			Actions	▼ Sort by Date ▼	0
			î		Example attachment of training pro Row 3	⊳ ?
	Met	start typing			March 2020, 10:46 AM by	0
				_	Example attachment of policy.pdf	≅∕⊽≂
					Sheet 9 March 2020, 10:43 AM by (26k)	
ו met would						
oto which				Location of attac	chment Date evidence was uploaded Name of attachment and attachment file type	
	Met	start typing				
	Met	start typing				
			COUNT: 6		Attach Files to Sheet	
			>			_

An attachment can be previewed by clicking on the attachment icon or downloaded by clicking the 3 vertical dots and selecting 'Download File'.



Finally, all attachments can be downloaded at once by ticking the box next to the 'Actions' button, then choosing to download all files.



Advanced functions

Tracking changes

Smartsheet provides a change tracking option that marks any changes that have been made to the sheet at any time. It does so by highlighting any cells that have been modified in yellow, as below:

3	Indicator and Criteria	Evidence	Self Assessment [choose from dropdown list]	Self Assessment [free text]	Assessor Assessment [choose from dropdown list]	Assessor's comment [free text]
	8	8				
2 💌	and Disability Services Consumers' Rights 1996.	Click here for Indicator 1 Guidance Resources				
	 The practice understands, promotes and implements the provide and implements the Services Consumers' Rights 1996. 	A poster of the Code of Health and Disability Services Consumers: Rights 1958 instatisted and appropriate encoded particle provides on the service of the service encoded particle production. The Health of the right to constrained on the service of the service of the service encoded on the service of the service of the service encoded on the service of the service of the service of the encoded on the service of the service of the service of the Decide and Service of the service of the service of the encoded of the service of the service of the service of the encoded of the service of the service of the service of the encoded of the service of the service of the service of the encoded of the service of the service of the service of the encoded of the service of the service of the service of the encoded of the service of the service of the service of the encoded of the service of the service of the service of the encoded of the service of the service of the service of the encoded of the service of the service of the service of the encoded of the service	Met	Essensive of precision land concerning how the indicator has been met would be written here. Alematicity the projection which to spload a photo which would display as per the cell below	Met	Example of assessor comment indicating whether the indicator has been met, parking ware on enter. This is a can be updated by the assessor at any time during the assessment process
	1.2 The practice ensures a patient's right to make an informed choice and give informed consent. [Right 7]	- Writen consent forms and/or a written record of verbal agreements, including risks Explanation of how the practice helps patients with literacy difficulties to make informed decisions Panghates, poster or information available describing the practice's services and fees.	Met		Met	start typing

This proves useful for monitoring whether your assessor has made any changes since you last viewed your assessment. A yellow highlighted cell indicates that changes have been made to a cell.

This function can be toggled on or off at any time by selecting the 'Highlight Changes' button at the top of the toolbox, as per the screenshot below:

	★ F12	345-X-ABC Prac	ctice			
I U S 🗞	• <u>A</u> • =• =• <u>A</u>	T 🔳 🖉	🖾 🗄 📫 Σ 🔹 \$	• % • .0, .00, 🛐 •		
ice	Highl Highlig	ight Changes ht cers that have recent propdown list]	^{tly changed.} sment [free text]	Assessor Assessment [choose from dropdown list]	Assessoi
for the first or 4.0			? ×			
For Indicator 1 G	Highlight Chang	es				
Code of Health ar ts 1996 translated ling te reo Māori, opulation.	N Highlight changes in the la	ast:			Met	Examp beer
rochures informin → support persons	Hour since 09/03/20 10:09 AM	•				
vocacy resources	Background color for char	nged cells:		ncerning how the indicator has been met would y the practice is able to upload a photo which Il below		
> policy and/or pre						
open disclosure e						
verse events are n nd in clinical notes.	ecorded in adverse					
	itten record of verbal	Met		e e	Met	

Should you wish to track changes that have occurred over a different time period, you can do so by changing this within the 'Highlight Changes' drop down.

Highlight Chang	? ×
ON	
Highlight changes since:	
I last viewed this sheet	•
Hour	ſ
Today	cells:
Day	cens.
Three Days	
Seven Days	
Thirty Days	
Custom Date	
I last viewed this sheet	

This function is explained further here.

Contacting your assessor

Once you have completed your self-assessment and are confident that all indicators have been met you will be required to contact an assessor and begin the assessment process.

The assessor that you choose <u>must</u> be listed on the College endorsed assessor register. The assessors on this list have completed College training, and have been subsequently endorsed and approved as an assessor of the Foundation Standard or Cornerstone module. Choosing an assessor not currently on this list will result in the College being unable to further your assessment.

To view the College endorsed assessor link, visit the College's quality website.

Once an assessor has been contacted and has agreed to assess your practice, you must share your Smartsheet assessment and assessment dashboard to allow them to begin their review. This must be shared prior to your onsite visit (if applicable) to allow the assessors to begin online preparation.

To do so, select 'Share' at the top right of the screen from your self-assessment and assessment dashboard sheets, and type the College endorsed assessors email address in the 'Invite Collaborators' textbox.

Note: You can also share your assessment sheet and dashboard with your PHO and other members of your general practice team.

1. Sharing the Assessment sheet.

Ensure that 'Editor-cannot share' is selected to control access to your assessment. You are also free to send an invitation message to the assessor in the 'personal message' box.



2. Sharing the Assessment Dashboard

When sharing the assessment dashboard, select 'Viewer' under permissions to allow the assessor viewing only privileges for this section.

		0 × 7 8 Q		
	Foundation Ass			
Assessment - Self progress (Pra	actice use)	Resources		
Met/Partially Met/Not Met Indicators (%)	Section 1: Türoro Patients	Section 2: MANAAKI HAUMANU ? >	The Royal New Zealand College of General Practitioners Te Whare Tohu Rate o Aoteoroa	
255	assescremai@gmail.com ✓ Invite Details Subject Line	Viewer •	View and update your profile	
75%	F12345-X-ABC Practice - Invitation to View Personal message (optional)		Assessment process	
			College endorsed assessors directory.	
Assessment - Self progress (As	Notify people Co myself Collaborators (0)		Contact the College Quality team	
Progress of assessed indicators (%)	Met Indicators: 5	Cencel Share Dashboard Met Indicators: 3	Resources	
i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	Met Indicators Assessors Partially Met Indicators: 0 Partially Met Assessors Not Met Indicators: 0 Not Met Assessors Not Applicable Indicators: 0 Not Yet Assessed Indicators: 8	Partially Met Indicators: 5 Not Met Indicators: 2 Not Applicable Indicators: 0 Not Yet Assessed Indicators: 4	The Royal New Zealand College of General Practitioners Te Whare Tohu Rate o Aoteoroa	
	Section 3: WHAKAHAU RONGOĂ Medicines Management	Section 4: TAPUTAPU Medical Equip. and Resources	Assessor portal	

Once your assessor has access to your assessment sheet and assessment dashboard, they are able to begin their assessment of your practice.

This will include marking indicators that can be reviewed online as 'met' and writing comments in the orange assessor section to the right of your assessment sheet against each indicator. Any indicators that are not yet met or are not able to be assessed remotely will be marked as 'Not yet assessed', 'Partially Met', or "Not Met".

In the case that a practice has been unable to meet all indicators during the pre-visit online review and onsite visit (if applicable), the practice and assessor will engage in a post-assessment dialogue process to discuss further actions needed. This will continue until the assessor completes the assessment by marking all indicators as 'met'.

Communicating with your assessor

During the assessment process you can leave comments to your assessor via a chat function separate from the assessor comment section. Whilst this is an optional feature, this function is useful for tracking purposes and as a means of keeping the assessor-practice conversation on the assessment more concise.

Comments can be written directly within each row by selecting the speech bubble icon on the left side of the indicator row in which the comment relates.





The comment section summary can be accessed by selecting the comment icon on the toolbar at the right side of the screen. This displays all conversations in a single and easy to access place within the assessment.

When writing a comment, select the @ symbol at the bottom of the chat box followed by the assessor's email to send your assessor an immediate notification email that a comment has been made.

Assessor report

After your assessment has been completed and all indicators have been met, you should keep a copy of your assessment report for your records. To do so, navigate to 'File' within the top left toolbar and then select 'Export' to obtain an offline copy of the complete assessment.

ile Automation Forms						
Create New	Y Filter					
Import	•					
Open (Ctrl + /)	ndicator and Criteria					
Save (Ctrl + S)		A				
Save as New	Section1: Tūroro Patients					
Save as Template	Indicator 1. The Code of Health					
Rename	and Disability Services Consumers' Rights 1996.					
Refresh ☆ Remove from Favorites & Share Send as Attachment Email Shared Users	1.1 The practice understands, promotes and implements the Code of Health and Disability Services Consumers' Rights 1996.	· C la ei · hi ci				
🕞 Export	Export to Microsoft Excel					
🖶 Print	📕 Export to PDF					
≅⁄⊽: View Activity Log	🖾 Export Gantt to Image (PNG)					
Properties	P Export to Microsoft Project (XML)					

When exporting, Smartsheet provides various options of what will be recorded in your report. It is recommend that all options are ticked to ensure that all information is made available for future reference.

Selection		Options
O Entire Sheet		✓ Include logo
 Selected Rows 		✓ Include sheet name
Paper Size		✓ Include row numbers
Letter (8.5in x 11in)	•	✓ Include date/time stamp
Margins		✓ Include page numbers
Default (0.5")	•	✓ Include comments
Orientation		Include collapsed rows
○ 💭 Landscape	🔿 🗋 Portrait	Add note to header (250 characters max)
Scaling		
 Scale 100 % ⁴ pages wide 1 page(s) long 	 Fit to Width 1 page wide 1 page(s) long 	
		Cancel

Closing your assessment

To complete your assessment, you must first un-share your assessment with your assessor. This will ensure they no longer have access to edit any information following the completion of your assessment.

To un-share, select the Share button at the top right of both your assessment sheet. This must be completed for both your self-assessment sheet and again for your assessment dashboard.

	F12345-X-ABC Practice			22 Shar
Ξ 27 4 Σ	▼\$ ~ % \$.0, .00, III ~			
Self Assessment [choose from dropdown list]	Self Assessment [free text]	Assessor Assessment [choose from dropdown list]	Assessor's comment [free text]	
	(F)			
				1
Met		Met	Example of assessor comment indicating whether the indicator has been met, partially met or not met. This can be updated by the assessor at any time during the assessment process	2
				٩
	Example of practice text concerning how the indicator has been met would be written here. Alternatively the practice is able to upload a photo which			
	would display as per the cell below			
Met		Met	start typing	
Met		Met	start typing	
met		Wet	start typing	
	start typing or right click and select 'insert image'			
Met		Met	start typing	
	start typing or right click and select 'insert image'			
Met	start traing or right click and select 'insert image'	Not yet assessed	start typing	

	☆ F12345-X-ABC Pra	uice :		
	Foundation Asse	ssment		
Assessment - Self progress (Practice use)			Resources	
Met/Partially Met/Not Met Indicators (%) Met Indicators Partially Met Indicators 25%	Section 1: Türoro Patients Met Indicators: 11 Partially Met Indicators: 1 Not Met Indicators: 0 Not Applicable Indicators: 1 Section 3: WHAKAHAU REMOSA Medicines Management Met Indicators: 6 Partially Met Indicators: 1	Section 2: MANAAKI HAUMANU Clinical Care Met Indicators: 9 Partially Met Indicators: 5 Not Applicable Indicators: 0 Section 4: TAPUTAPU Medical Equip. and Resources Met Indicators: 6 Partially Met Indicators: 2	The Royal New Zealand College of General Practitioners Te Whate Tohu Rata o Aotearco View and update your profile Ecundation information	
75%	Persian menutations of the second sec	Not Met Indicators: 0 Not Applicable Indicators: 0 Section 6: WHARE HAUMANU The Practice Met Indicators: 4	Assessment process College Quality page College endorsed assessors directory	
	Partially Met Indicators: 2 Not Met Indicators: 0 Not Applicable Indicators: 1	Partially Met Indicators: 3 Not Met Indicators: 0 Not Applicable Indicators: 0	Contact the College Quality team	
Assessment - Self progress (Assessor use) Progress of assessed indicators (%)	Section 1: Türoro Patients	Section 2: MANAAKI HAUMANU		
Met Indicators Assesso	Met Indicators: 5	Clinical Care Met Indicators: 3 Partially Met Indicators: 5	Resources	

Select 'Collaborators,' followed by the assessors' name that has access to your sheet. Finally select the 'x' on the corresponding assessor to remove their access to your assessment. Close this box once you have removed your assessor, and only your own practice collaborators are showing on this list.

Invite Collaborators		P	ermissions	0		
Enter names or email addresses			/iewer	•		Viewa
Invite Details						view
Collaborators (1)						Fou
The College (quality@rnzcgp.org	J.NZ) Owner					<u>As</u>
R Assessor's email address	Viewe	r	•	×		
				R	emove f	from Dashboard \$
				_		College en
						<u></u>
Dashboard link (accessible by shared users on	nlv) 🚯					Contact
https://app.smartsheet.com/dashboards/3fh		Ccw6xX86	vMRhmQW5	i1 🗹		

Once confirmation has been provided by your assessor that all indicators have been met they will contact and send a recommendation to the College. This will close off your assessment.

Hints and Tips

- Refer to the <u>assessment dashboard</u> to track your progress and ensure that you have marked all indicators are 'Met' before contacting an assessor.
- To begin writing on the assessment sheet double-click to enter the text cell. Press Alt+Enter for a new line within the cell.
- Ensure that you only use the 'Share' button within Smartsheet to share your assessment sheet with someone else. This will send them the correct email to create an account.
- Use the <u>comment</u> section to communicate with your assessor rather than via email. If you want the assessor to be notified of your comment immediately, select the '@'symbol at the bottom of the comment toolbar and begin typing the email of your assessor.
- Don't forget to export your assessment at the end of the process to retain a copy. You are also given the option to include your comments with your export, which we recommend.
- Utilise the <u>tracking</u> feature should you want to quickly identify any change the assessor has made since you last viewed their assessment.
- The smartsheet app can be downloaded onto your <u>Android</u> or <u>Apple</u> phone or tablet for easy viewing and editing of an assessment on the go.

For further information on Smartsheet, please review the various learning resources below:

- Getting started as a free user
- Logging in
- User types and permissions
- Navigating the Smartsheet UX

Alternatively, the College Quality team can be reached at <u>quality@rnzcgp.org.nz</u>

Appendix 1 – Cornerstone Modules

Cornerstone modules also have an assessment sheet associated with them, just like the Foundation Standard. Whilst most Cornerstone modules share a similar assessment sheet format with the Foundation Standard (i.e. having indicators and criteria), the format of the other modules may vary slightly. These variations are detailed below.

Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) – The CQI module does not have indicators or criteria to complete. Practices are required to upload a final report describing the practice's quality improvement project. The Yellow sections of the sheet explain the elements required within the final report.

To upload a CQI final report, select the paper clip within the Smartsheet toolbar to the right side of the screen, and select 'Attach files to this sheet'.

Please note that the CQI Module does not have an accompanying assessment dashboard.



Information on CQI can be found on the College CQI Module webpage <u>here</u>. Further guidance will also be provided to your practice after purchasing the CQI module.

Teaching Module – The Teaching Module has an assessment dashboard and sheet. The Teaching module is similar to the Foundation Standard in that practices upload evidence against a set of indicators and criteria. At the beginning of each section is a worksheet that assists in putting a practice in context with the indicators and criteria and help a practice to identify appropriate evidence to upload.

	0		Progress	Indicator	Criteria	Suggested Evidence	Self-assessment (Met/Partially Met/Not Met)	Self-Assessment Comments
			8	8	8	8		
		6	1	Teaching Module				
		6	•	Section 1 Ngākau Akoranga Commitment to Training	The practice is committed to quality and safe training of trainees			
3		e)	Section 1 context				
4				The evidence provided in this section should demonstrate how your practice is sustainable, well run and committed to training health practitioners and/or staff associated with the successful operation of the practice. This includes identifying the range of people your practices is committed to train, the resources available, the policies, procedures and practices used to ensure the training to teacherstrainers and the systems in place to review progress of the trainer and to provide additional support when needed. The below documents will help to define these areas more fully and should be used as a reference when considering what evidence to supply in the following criteria.	~0	2	Not Met	
5 🛛	0			Scope of Training	has a supportive learning environment is to	Click the paperoid to your left to download and complete Table 1: Traines types and range of training offered. Once completed, please upload a copy to this row and select 'Met from the Self-assessment dropdown.	Not Met	
6	Û		3	Business model	The next step is to consider the extent to which the commitment to training these staff is reflected in your practice's business model. Table 2 is aimed at identifying ways in which this could be demonstrated.	Click the paperclip to your left to download and complete Table 2: Evidence of training elements that may be included in the practice's business model. Once completed, please upload's copy to this row and select 'Met' from the Self- assessment dropdown.	Not Met	
7	Ū			Training role requirements	For each of the types of practitioners your practice is planning to support in training, consider the role requirements for the trainee, the teacher, the mentor/supervisor and the practice. Table 3 has been developed to assist with this.	Click the paperclip to your left to download and complete Table 3. Role requirements of the trainee, teacher, mentor/supervisor and the practice. Once completed, please upload a copy to this row and select 'Met' from the Self-assessment dropdown.	Not Met	

- 1. **Section Context summary** Take note of the section context displayed at the beginning of each section which provides important information against each respective section.
- 2. **Suggested evidence** Within the section context, this column includes instructions on how to download the associated worksheet. Next to criteria, the suggested evidence describes ways a practice can meet the requirements of the indicator. This column serves as a list of examples and does not include all the ways a practice can meet the requirements of the indicator.
- 3. Attachments The report template can be found by selecting the paper clip to the left of the 'Scope of training', 'Business model', and 'Training role requirements' rows. These need to be downloaded and re-uploaded once completed.

To download each report, select the paperclip on the corresponding row, followed by ticking the box to the left of the file name and selecting 'Download File'.





To upload, once again select the paperclip to the left of the row and select 'upload new version' to upload your completed report.



4. **Self-assessment dropdown** – Ensure to select 'Met' once you have uploaded the required documentation, as well as once you have completed each indicator for each section

Information on the Teaching module can be found on the College Teaching Module webpage <u>here</u>. Further guidance will also be provided to your practice after purchasing the module.